
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young 
People Decision Day 
 

Date and Time Monday, 15th March, 2021 at 3.00 pm 
  
Place Virtual Teams Meeting - Microsoft Teams 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
John Coughlan CBE 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the 
County Council’s website. 

AGENDA 
 
DEPUTATIONS 
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.  

 
KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
1. CHILDREN’S SERVICES CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE  (Pages 3 

- 20) 
 
 To consider a report of the Director of Children’s Services and Director of 

Corporate Resources – Corporate Services regarding the Children’s 
Services Capital Programme. 
 

NON KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None 

 
KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None 

 
NON KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 

The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the 
meeting via the webcast. 



  

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Decision Report 
 

Decision Maker: Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young 
People 

Date: 15 March 2021 

Title: Children’s Services Capital Programme update 

Report From: Director of Children’s Services and Director of Corporate 
Resources – Corporate Services 

Contact name: 
Peter Colenutt, Assistant Director, Strategic Development and 
Capital Delivery, Children’s Services and Adult Services    

Tel:    01962 846270 Email: peter.colenutt@hants.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation(s) 

1. That the revised capital programme cash limit of £67.857m for 2020/21 be 
approved. 

2. That the revised 2020/21 capital programme as set out in Appendix 1 be 
approved, along with the amendments to the 2020/21 capital programme. 

3. That the following variations to the 2021/22 capital programme be 
approved: 

 It is recommended that resources of £2.448m be added to the 
2021/22 capital programme to create additional sports facilities at 
Deer Park School.  

 That approval be given to undertake the public consultations on the 
expansion of Riverside Community Special School, St Francis 
Special School and Hollywater School. 

 That approval be given to allocate resources of up to £0.5m from the 
2021/22 Capital Programme for the relocation of the Little Deer’s 
Day Nursery, Burley.  

 It is recommended that resources of £0.290m are approved from the 
2021/22 capital programme for the hall extension at South 
Farnborough Junior School. 

4. It is recommended that approval be given to the Director of Children’s 
Services to determine those sites that require modular buildings for the 
2021/22 academic year and that the sites listed in Appendix 2 be noted.  

5. It is also recommended that approval be given to the Director of Children’s 
Services to allocate £1.2m of identified revenue funding to support the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

relocation of existing modular buildings. It is also recommended that 
approval be given to the Director of Children’s Services to allocate £2m to 
those sites that have been determined as requiring the purchase of new 
modular buildings.  

6. That the projects listed at Appendix 3 for Access Improvements in Schools 
for 2021/22 be approved. 

7. That the projects approved under delegated powers by the Director of 
Children’s Services in Appendix 4 are noted.  

8. It is recommended that the necessary public consultations are undertaken 
and that the Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services 
(CCBS) undertake costed feasibility studies for each of the projects listed in 
Appendix 5. 

 

Executive Summary  

9. This report sets out the updated Children’s Services Capital Programme for 
2020/21. It also provides an update on projects identified for 2021/22. 

Background 

10. The Children’s Services Capital Programme is based on government 
grants, capital receipts, developer contributions and local resources. 

 

2020/21 Capital Programme 

11. Taking into account changes since the 2020/21 capital programme was last 
approved on 13 January 2021 (including those proposed in this report), the 
revised cash limit for the programme is shown in Table 1. The revised 
capital programme for 2020/21 reflecting the adjustments made during the 
year is shown at Appendix 1. 

Table 1 – Revised 2020/21 Cash Limit £’000 

Cash Limit reported 13 January 2021 67,733 

Ganger Farm (Romsey Primary) developer contribution  45 

Boorley Green (Boorley Park Primary Academy) 
developer contribution 

56 

Austen Academy – Additional ESFA Grant 23 

Total 67,857 

 

 

Page 4



  

2021/22 Capital Programme 

 

Deer Park School, Hedge End – Additional Sports Facilities (ASF) 

12. The new Deer Park Secondary School is due to open in September 2021. It 
has been agreed with Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) that Additional 
Sports facilities (ASF) will be provided for the benefit of the wider 
community.  

13. The works will comprise an extension of the sports hall to provide 
community changing facilities and a floodlit all weather artificial 3G turf 
pitch.  

14. The County Council and EBC have agreed to jointly fund the additional 
facilities from developer contributions which are estimated to cost £2.448m 
(including fees). The County Council is contributing £1.167m and EBC 
£1.281m. Therefore, it is recommended that resources of £2.448m are 
added to the 2021/22 capital programme. A detailed project appraisal will 
be brought to a future decision day.  

15. The £2.448m resources being added to the 2021/22 capital programme 
give a total programme cash limit of £41.496m.  

Little Deer’s Day Nursery, Burley, New Forest 

16. It is proposed that work is undertaken to relocate the Little Deer’s Day 
Nursery, Burley from its current location off Ringwood Road to the site of 
Burley Primary School, Church Lane. This is due to the County Council 
needing to fulfil its childcare sufficiency duty to secure early years and 
childcare places locally for this rural community. Without this development, 
the longer-term future provision of early years education within Burley, 
serving Bransgore and Burley ward, would be at risk. 

17. The current building occupied by the day nursery is beyond its useful life 
and in need of replacement. The relocation to the primary school site will 
offer benefits to both the school and nursery, allowing for collaborative 
working and shared learning to be developed. 

18. Therefore, it is recommended that resources of up to £0.5m (including fees) 
be made available from the Early Years capital funding approved in the 13 
January 2021 Capital Programme Report.  

Special Educational Needs and Disability - Additional Places  

19. The requirement for additional special school places has been identified for 
September 2021. To provide these places, the provision of modular 
accommodation is required at Riverside Community Special School, 
Havant and St Francis Special School, Fareham. Internal alterations are 
required at Hollywater School, Bordon.  

20. Without the provision of these places within the maintained sector, there 
would be a requirement to place these children in Independent Non-
maintained Special Schools (INMSS). Placing children in INMSS places a 
significant revenue cost on the County Council. Therefore, the provision of 

Page 5



  

additional accommodation at the schools listed above provides a solution 
that enables children to be placed at a local school that can fully meet their 
needs, while ensuring a cost-effective solution for the County Council. 

21. Therefore, it is recommended that approval be given to consult on the 
expansion of Riverside Community Special School, St Francis Special 
School and Hollywater School. Subject to approval, it is anticipated that the 
places will be available by September 2021.  

Special Educational Needs and Disability - Resourced Provision 

22. The SEND strategy proposes expanding the number of Primary and 
Secondary mainstream schools offering resourced provision. This will focus 
on support for pupils with autistic spectrum disorder and pupils with social, 
emotional and mental health needs. Recognising the need to progress 
these schemes, it is recommended, that the necessary public consultations 
are undertaken and that the Director of Culture, Communities and Business 
Services (CCBS) undertake costed feasibility studies for each of the 
projects listed in Appendix 5. 

South Farnborough Junior School, Farnborough 

23. The requirement for a hall expansion at South Farnborough Junior school 
was previously reported on 13 January 2021 at a total cost of £0.225m 
(including fees). 

24. Following a review of the scheme, it has been possible to provide a larger 
extension of the hall and provide more space for the school at a relatively 
small increase to the cost of the scheme. The larger scheme is estimated 
to cost £0.290m (including fees). A detailed project appraisal will be 
brought to a future decision day. 

 

Access Improvements in Schools 

25. As in previous years, funding is being made available to fund access 
improvements to mainstream schools, both at a pupil-led and strategic 
level. 

26. It is recommended that the projects listed at Appendix 3 are approved for 
2021/22. 

   

Modular Classrooms 

27. The use of high-quality modular buildings can be a solution for some 
accommodation pressures. Such buildings are relatively quick to install and 
provide for a good quality learning environment, meeting the most recent 
building regulations. For some schools, modular classrooms may be the 
only expansion solution, whilst others may find a mixture of both permanent 
and modular accommodation.   

28. Details of the location of planned modular buildings required for September 
2021 are listed for information in Appendix 2. In some cases, the units will 
be rented due to the shorter-term requirement, whilst others will be 

Page 6



  

purchased recognising a longer-term pressure in those locations. In both 
cases, the movement of existing owned modular buildings will also be 
considered. The sites currently listed in Appendix 2 may need to be 
updated following pupil data received later in the academic year. The 
actual needs of sites will be determined following receipt of updated 
information on pupil places required for the September 2021 intakes. It is 
recommended that approval be given to the Director of Children’s Services 
to determine those sites that require modular buildings for the 2021/22 
academic year. 

Action taken by the Director of Children’s Services  

29. Under delegated powers and following consultation with the Executive 
Member for Children’s Services, the actions set out in Appendix 4 have 
been taken and it is recommended that these actions are noted.

Page 7



 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

Yes 

 
 

Other Significant Links 

Links to previous Member decisions:  

Title Reference Date 
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2017/18 
to 2019/20 

7917 18 January 2017 

Children’s Services Capital Programme update n/a 19 June 2017 

Children’s Services capital programme update n/a 20 September 
2017 

   

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   

Title Date 
  

 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
Document Location 

None  

 

Page 8



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 
1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 

Equality and diversity objectives will be considered on an individual project 
basis by conducting Equality Impact Assessments and are not considered at 
this stage or within this report. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1   

 
 

Revised Children’s Services Capital Programme 2020/21 

Category Project 

Estimated 
Starts 
Value 
£’000 

Primary School Projects Ashley Junior, New Milton 197 

 Cornerstone CE (Aided) Primary, Whiteley 12,300 

 Fair Oak Infant & Junior, Fair Oak 2,223 

 Fryern Junior, Chandlers Ford 7,642 

 Grange Junior, Gosport 8,171 

 Kings Copse Primary, Hedge End 400 

 Park View Primary, Basingstoke 245 

   

Secondary School Projects Secondary School Improvements 194 

 Calthorpe Park, Fleet 9,180 

 Winton Academy, Andover 760 

 Wyvern College, Fair Oak 2,200 

   

Special Schools & Resourced Provision Special School Improvements 687 

 Forest Park School, Totton 500 

 Osborne School, Winchester 1,605 

 Rachel Madocks School, Waterlooville 290 

 Samuel Cody Specialist Sports College, Farnborough 600 

 Shepherds Down School, Winchester 1,700 

 Woodcot Primary, Gosport 310 

 Holbrook Primary, Gosport 260 

 Post 16 Resourced Provisions 2,700 

 SEND Grant Improvements 1,141 

   

Other Improvement Projects Other Improvement Projects 695 

 School Suitability Programme 2,000 

   

Block Votes Access Improvements in Schools 928 

  Furniture & Equipment 250 

  Health & Safety 400 

 Healthy Pupils Capital Fund 706 

 Minor Works 608 

 Projects Funded by Developer Contributions 336 

 Schools’ Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) 3,317 

 Minstead Study Centre 104 

 Contingency 4,276 

   

Children’s Social Care Foster Carers 322 

 Adaptation Equipment 470 

 Children’s Homes 140 

  Total 67,857 

 
 

 
 

Page 11



Appendix 1   

 
 

Children’s Services Capital Resources 2020/21 
 
 £’000 £’000 

Cash Limit reported 13 January 2021  67,733 

Ganger Farm (Romsey Primary) developer contribution 45  

Boorley Green (Boorley Park Primary Academy) developer contribution 56  

Austen Academy – Additional ESFA Grant 23  

Total Resources  67,857 

 
 
 
 

Social Care Project Funding 
Source 

Year £’000 

Rushmoor Area Loft conversion Social care 2021/22 81 

 Total   81 

 

Page 12



Appendix 2    

New Modular Classrooms 2021/22 

      

 

 

School 

NCA/ 
APN  

October 
2020  

Actual    
NOR 

October 
2020 

Forecast 
NOR 

September 
2021 

Cost 
£’000 

 

Requirement  

Anstey Junior, 
Alton 

240 234 216 200 

HCC Owned – Installation of double 
unit from Cornerstone CE (VA) 
Primary to create new ASD 
Resourced provision. 

Cornerstone CE 
VA Primary, 
Whiteley 

- - - 100 

HCC Owned – Removal of owned 
double unit from Cornerstone CE 
(VA) Primary and reinstatement of 
grounds. 

Forest Park 
School, Totton 

124 124 130 500 
Purchase of new double unit to 
accommodate increased pupil 
numbers from September 2021. 

Riverside 
Community 
Special School, 
Waterlooville 

117 117 133 500 

Purchase of new double unit to 
accommodate increased pupil 
numbers from September 2021.  

Shepherds 
Down School, 
Winchester 

- - - 100 
HCC Owned – Removal of owned 
double unit from Shepherds Down 
School and reinstatement of grounds. 

Shakespeare 
Infant School, 
Eastleigh 

- - - 100 
HCC Owned – Removal of owned 
double unit from Shakespeare Infant 
School and reinstatement of grounds. 

St Francis 
Special School, 
Fareham 

93 91 107 200 

HCC Owned – Installation of double 
unit from Shepherds Down School to 
meet increasing pupil numbers from 
September 2021.  

Total    1,700  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3  

 

 

Access Improvements in Schools – proposed works for 2021/22  
 

Resources £000’s 

Allocation 2021/22 500 

Balance c/fwd 2020/21        0 

Total 500 
 

 

 

School Project Cost  
£’000 

Anstey Junior, Alton New hygiene room 70 

Elson Junior, Gosport New hygiene room and external 
improvements 

70 

Nightingale Primary, Eastleigh Hygiene room improvements (new hoist) 12 

Park Community School, Havant New hygiene room and physiotherapy space 50 

Saxon Wood School, Basingstoke Hygiene room improvements (new hoist) 6 

Trosnant Infant, Havant External access ramps 15 

Total  223 

 
Note: Schemes controlled on an expenditure basis 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
 

Actions by Director of Childrens Services 

 

School 

  

Project 

  

Funding Source Year 
Cost 

£’000 

Bramley Primary, Tadley New Multi-use games area Developer 
Contribution 

2021/22 100 

Broad Oaks, Basingstoke Internal refurbishment to 
enable lease to Coppice 
Spring Academy 

SEN 2021/22 200 

Elson Junior, Gosport Health & Safety 
improvements 

Health & Safety 2021/22 23 

Glenwood School, Emsworth 

 

Internal adaptations SEN 2021/22 25 

Hamble School, Hamble Toilet refurbishment 
project 

School Suitability 
Fund 

2021/22 175 

Heatherside Junior, Fleet Toilet improvements School Suitability 
Fund 

2021/22 35 

Hive PBS, Aldershot 

 

Toilet refurbishment 
project 

Minor Works 2021/22 12 

Hollywater School, Bordon New toilet provision and 
internal remodelling 

SEN 2021/22 150 

Lakeside School, Eastleigh Toilet refurbishment 
project and fire safety 
improvements 

School Suitability 
Fund 

2021/22 215 

Rucstall Primary, 
Basingstoke 

Toilet refurbishment 
project 

School Suitability 
Fund 

2021/22 160 

Saxon Wood School, 
Basingstoke 

Internal remodelling and  
safeguarding works 
(reception) 

SEN 2021/22 200 

Total    1,295 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 
 

New and Expanded Resourced Provisions at Mainstream Schools 

 

School 

  

Project 

  

Funding 
Source 

Year Cost 

£’00
0 

Bedenham Primary, Gosport Internal alterations to create 
larger SEMH Resourced 
Provision 

SEND Grant 2021/22 100 

Noadswood Academy, 
Dibden Purlieu  

Alterations to caretaker house 
to create SEMH Resourced 
Provision 

SEND Grant 2021/22 100 

Total    200 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Children’s Services Capital Programme Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


